
Yolo County Housing  May 17, 2012 

 Yolo County Housing  
 Yolo County, California 
 
 May 17, 2012 
 
 M I N U T E S 
 
Yolo County Housing met on the 17th day of May, 2012 in regular session in its 
Chambers in the Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court Street, Woodland, 
California at 2:00 p.m. Present were Commissioners Thomson, Aguiar-Curry, Eisenstat, 
Chaney, Pimentel and Johannessen. Chair Thomson presided. Others present were 
Lisa A. Baker, Executive Director and Sonia Cortés, Agency Counsel. 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 1 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
This meeting of the Board of Commissioners commenced with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 2 
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Minute Order No. 12-20:  Approved the agenda for this meeting as submitted. 
 
MOTION: Agiuar-Curry. SECOND: Johannessen. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, 
Eisenstat, Pimentel, Chaney, Johannessen.   
 
 
Agenda Item No. 3 
Public Comment 
 
The Chair invited individuals of the public to make statements on matters relating to Yolo 
County Housing business.  There was no public comment. 
 
 
Presentations 
 
Minute Order No. 12-21: Approved the following presentations: 
                                            
4.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented Certificate of Appreciation to the Davis 

Rotary Club for their Day of Service to the Davis Migrant Center. 
 
5.   Approved and authorized the Chair to sign Resolution No. 12-05 adopting May as 

Yolo County Housing Bike Month.  
 
6.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented Certificate of Completion for 

Combustion Safety and Depressurization to Yuriy Sheyko 
 
7.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented CS 400 Certification (National Incident 

Management Training) to Alberto Castillo and Mark Stern 



Yolo County Housing  May 17, 2012 

 
8.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented Tax Credit Management Certification to 

Marianne Krager 
 
9.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented new Agricultural Housing Division staff: 

Federico Chavez, Davis Senior Migrant Coordinator; Angel Damian, Dixon Migrant 
Center Coordinator and Maite Herrera, Part-time Office Assistant I 

 
10.  Executive Director Lisa Baker presented YCH contributions to Wildlife Habitat 
 
MOTION: Eisenstat. SECOND: Aguiar-Curry. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, 
Pimentel, Chaney, Johannessen.   
 
 
Consent Agenda     
 
Minute Order No. 12-22:  Acted on the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
11.   Approved the minutes of April 19, 2012. 
 
12.  Approved and authorized the chair to sign Resolution No. 12-06 establishing the 

revised flat rent schedule and authorized the Executive Director to implement. 
 
13.  Received and filed summary background information regarding New Hope 

Community Development Corporation Note Receivable. 
 
MOTION: Johannessen. SECOND: Pimentel. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, 
Pimentel, Chaney, Johannessen.   
 
 
Agenda Item No. 14 
Portable Electronic Devices 
 
Minute Order No. 12-23: Took the following actions: 
 

A. Reviewed and discussed the findings of the research 
B. Compared alternatives and selected option no. 6  - having the option to either 

buy one’s own device that meets a standard specification or having YCH 
purchase a table that meets the standard specification 

C. $100 stipend to cover public use of the device  
D. Training 
E. Authorized the Executive Director to implement 

 
MOTION: Pimentel. SECOND: Aguiar-Curry. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, 
Pimentel, Chaney, Johannessen.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



Yolo County Housing  May 17, 2012 

Agenda Item No. 15 
Energy Performance Update 
  
Executive Director Lisa Baker provided a verbal update on energy Performance 
Contracting Status for 3Green Energy (Housing Authorities of Butte, Sutter and Yolo 
County). 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 16 
Executive Director Comments 

 
Executive Director Lisa Baker provided comments as follows: 
 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS, MAY 2012 
Resource Administration and Client Services  
Client and Partner Services 

 Through a generous donation from a Winters resident, two families received 
much needed furniture and goods for their homes  Pictures of the happy families 
were provided to the donor with their special thanks.  YCH staff worked together 
to transport the items and set them up in their homes.   

 82 representatives of housing (private landlords and staff) attended the Annual 
Fair Housing Conference held at Yolo County Housing on April 19th.  Guest 
speakers included representatives from HUD, the National Housing Law Project, 
and YCH staff.  This event is led by Legal Services of Northern California in 
partnership with the City of Woodland and Yolo County Housing. 

         
The agenda included Protections for Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual 
Assault and Stalking, Fair Housing Overview, and YCH Customer Care 
Presentation for Landlords. 

 The quarterly resident meetings were held: 
o West Sacramento - 4/19  
o Woodland - 4/25  
o Winters - 4/26 

Guest presentations from the Yolo County Library 2-1-1, the Yolo County Health 
Department Nutrition Education Program, and the Bike Program were provided 
along with YCH updates and reminders. 
The Winters meeting held a raffle for a bicycle that was donated by a local 
Winters resident.   

 UC Davis TANA spring program began April 19.  YCH has partnered in 
promoting their program throughout the Woodland complex and local community. 

 Davis Rotary volunteered to “perk up” the flower planters at the entrance of the 
Davis Migrant Center.  Volunteers weeded, planted, and cleaned up the two 
planters at the entrance on 4/28/12. 

 Partner services on-site at the Madison, Davis, and Dixon Migrant Centers are in 
full swing with services available daily.  For example, Madison has ESL classes 
on Monday and Wednesday, Mass on Tuesday, Health Screening and Education 
on Thursdays, and Social Friday Nights.  In addition, benefit enrollment for 
services such as Medi-Cal, Cal-Fresh, and other social service programs are 
available on-site at the Centers. 

Resources 
 Yolo County Housing has filled two open positions: 



Yolo County Housing  May 17, 2012 

o P/T Office Assistant I, Agricultural Services Division,  
o Temporary Part-Time Computer Learning Center Assistant, I.T. Division 

And is currently recruiting for: 
o Housing Program Supervisor, Agricultural Housing Division  
o Maintenance II, Real Estate Services Division  
o P/T Resident Manager, Real Estate Services Division 

 Resident Opportunities and Self-Sufficiency Grant 
o Staff submitted their grant proposal for 3 years of HUD funding to support 

the hiring of a ROSS Service Coordinator to coordinate supportive 
services and other activities designed to help public housing residents 
attain economic and housing self-sufficiency.   

 Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Grant 
o Staff submitted their grant proposal for 3 years of HUD funding to support 

the hiring of a Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Coordinator to 
expand services to families and financially support the current YCH 
Housing Choice Voucher FSS Program. 

 Four UC Davis Environmental Justice students met with staff to develop a 
mutually beneficial project.  A resident survey has been developed to identify 
educational, social service, technology, health, and youth services needs for the 
Winters Complex and can be duplicated throughout each AMP location.  This will 
assist YCH in identifying some common needs among residents for targeting on-
site services and support future grant writing efforts.  The students will be 
provided data to develop their report as it relates to low income public housing 
residents in Yolo and environmental influences.  The door-to-door survey will be 
conducted 5/16 and 5/19. 

 California Housing Workers Compensation Authority (CHWCA) held their Annual 
Board Meeting April 26-27.  Janis Holt was appointed to the Risk Management 
Committee representing YCH and medium-sized housing agencies within the 
JPA. 

 On-Site Staff Training 
o Lead Hazard Identification and Containment through the Housing 

TeleVideo Network; April 12  
o Managing Your Personal Finances through Managed Health Network; 

May 9.  
o Fitness and Your Brain: Avoiding Dementia; Scheduled May 23  
o Legal Services of Northern California Training; Scheduled May 30 

Operations 
Agricultural Housing 
Madison Migrant 

 100% occupied  
 Madison residents have started a morning Zumba class -  Communicare is 

looking to have exercise classes at all sites to promote a healthy lifestyle. Their 
plan is to rotate exercise plans  

 Residents had a "fight night", and showed the Mayweather-Cotto 
fight.  Residents had a very quiet peaceful evening watching the fights with no 
incidents. 

Davis Migrant 
 Currently we have 9 vacancies and are working off the waiting list to fill them  
  Maintenance major repairs: 

o Replaced 15 water pumps and floats on the swamp coolers  
o Replaced  25 GFIs on different units  



Yolo County Housing  May 17, 2012 

o Unit #22: Repaired broken water line in the attic due to freeze  
o Unit #64: Repaired kitchen ceiling due to water damage  
o Unit #73-B: Replaced stove 

Dixon Migrant 
 100% occupied  

All sites had a very smooth opening day. 
Real Estate Services 
YCH successfully added Crosswoods Apartments to its portfolio, pending the tax credit, 
HUD loan.  
Low Rent Public Housing: PIC score 99.03% 
  
Occupancy is: 
Winters 97% 
Woodland 100% 
West Sacramento 99% 
New Hope, Cottonwood Meadows: Cottonwood 97% 
Housing Assistance 
The PIC Report rate for the month of April was 98.96; zero late re-exams and zero late 
HQS . 
68 new families from the wait list received vouchers and are searching for units; Housing 
Assistance is currently issuing weekly vouchers to families.  
Facilities 
Contracts for roadway improvements at Winters and ADA site improvements at Winters 
and Esparto design work has been executed  by YCH and the engineering firm, 
Laugenour and Meikle. 
Contracts for ADA improvements have been executed by YCH and the architectural firm 
McCandless and Associates, awaiting both USDA - RD and OMS Concurrence before 
design work begins.   
Engineering design work has been completed for flying bridge at Cottonwood Meadows. 
Moving forward with pricing for construction work in late May. 
A review of facility use agreements by Resource Administration shows that the City 
never entered into a use agreement with YCH for the boxing club. In order to correct this 
oversight and ensure that the property meets minimal standards since its return to the 
YCH portfolio, staff made site inspections during the month of May, including one 
inspection with the Executive Director on May 16, 2012. As a result, staff has determined 
that the building needs some additional repairs prior to entering into a lease agreement 
for the building. As the building is slated for future demolition and replacement, staff is 
identifying cost effective interim measures for the site prior to effecting a use agreement 
with the City. In addition, the City currently does not pay rent for the facility and the site 
is not within federal Declaration of Trust, meaning that federal Capital Funds cannot be 
spent on its maintenance and repair. At this time, the building has no source of revenue 
for its maintenance. Staff expects to bring a proposal for use of reserves to make minor 
improvements while Resource Administration moves forward with effecting a facility use 
agreement with the City. 
Finance 

 Successful completion of ICS 400 for emergency management  
 Submitted proposed Cottonwood budget to HCD  
 Submitted proposed Migrant Center budgets to HCD  
 Successfully completed Single Audit  
 Successfully closed Cottonwood Audit 

 





 

 

 
 

 
 
 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING  
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

JUNE 21, 2012 
 
 
 
 
 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING  
HOUSING COMMISSION 

 
CECILIA AGUIAR-CURRY 

EVONNE CHANEY 
RITA EISENSTAT 

MARK JOHANNESSEN 
ART PIMENTEL 

ROCHELLE SWANSON (ALTERNATE) 
HELEN MACLEOD THOMSON 

 
 
 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS 
625 COURT STREET, ROOM 206 
WOODLAND, CALIFORNIA 95695 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LISA A. BAKER  SONIA CORTES  
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR     AGENCY COUNSEL 



Yolo County Housing  Agenda – June 21, 2012 
 
  

 
 - 1 - 

Reminder: Please turn off cell phones.  
 

2:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Consider approval of agenda 

3. Public Comment: Opportunity for members of the public to address the Housing Authority on subjects not 
otherwise on the agenda relating to Housing Authority business.  The Board reserves the right to impose 
a reasonable limit on time afforded to any topic or to any individual speaker. 

 
PRESENTATIONS 

4. Presentation of New staff: Veronica Cano Chavez, Interim Client Services Coordinator; Tony Segoviano, 
Maintenance II 

CONSENT AGENDA 

5. Approval of Minutes from the meeting of May 17, 2012 

6.   Receive and File Letter from Assemblymember Mariko Yamada Congratulating Yolo County Housing on the 
2012 Clean Air Award  

7. Resolution Adopting the Risk Control Policy Statement of Yolo County Housing (Holt) 
 

8. Review and Approve the YCH Actuarial Valuation of Other Post-Employment Benefit Programs (GASB 
45)  (Stern) 

 
9. Appropriate $21,000 in operating reserve funds to be budgeted for building repairs to the Woodland 

boxing club (Ichtertz, Stern and Holt) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 

10. Review and Approve Resolution Adopting 2012 – 2013 Annual Budget (Stern and Baker) 

11.  Review and Approve Resolution to Extend Term of Memorandum of Understanding for Multi-Authority 
Joint Procurement of an Energy Services Contractor, Selection of Offeror, and Authorization to Proceed 
with Investment-Grade Energy Audit of Public Housing Facilities (Baker) 
 

12. Receive Comments from Executive Director 

13. Receive Comments from Commissioners 

CLOSED SESSIONS 

14. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9(b): 1 case 
 

15. Conference with Labor Negotiator: Lisa A. Baker, Executive Director; Janis R. Holt, Resource 
Administrator; Sonia Cortés, Agency Counsel 
Bargaining Unit: General Unit 



Yolo County Housing  Agenda – June 21, 2012 
 
  

 
 - 2 - 

 Adjournment 

 Next meeting scheduled for July 19, 2012.

 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted June 15, 2012 by 5:00 p.m. at the following 
places: 

1. On the bulletin board at the east entrance of the Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court Street, 
Woodland, California; and 

2. On the bulletin board on the kiosk outside the Board of Supervisors Chambers, Room 206, in the 
Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court Street, Woodland, California. 

3. On the bulletin board of Yolo County Housing, 147 West Main Street, Woodland, California. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda will be posted no later than June 18, 2012 by 2:00 p.m. as 
follows: 

4. On the Yolo County website: www.yolocounty.org. 

 Julie Dachtler, Clerk of the Board 

 By:   
        Clerk 

NOTICE 
 
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by 
Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in implementation 
thereof.  Persons seeking an alternative format should contact the Clerk of the Board for further information.  In addition, a 
person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
participate in a public meeting should telephone or otherwise contact the Clerk of the Board as soon as possible and at least 
24 hours prior to the meeting.  The Clerk of the Board may be reached at (530) 666-8195 or at the following address: 

 
Yolo County Housing 

c/o Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Yolo 

625 Court Street, Room 204 Woodland, CA 95695 



 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  May 17, 2012    To: County Counsel                           
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Presentations 
 
Minute Order No. 12-21: Approved the following presentations: 
                                            
4.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented Certificate of Appreciation to the Davis Rotary Club for 

their Day of Service to the Davis Migrant Center. 
 
5.   Approved and authorized the Chair to sign Resolution No. 12-05 adopting May as Yolo County 

Housing Bike Month.  
 
6.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented Certificate of Completion for Combustion Safety and 

Depressurization to Yuriy Sheyko 
 
7.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented CS 400 Certification (National Incident Management 

Training) to Alberto Castillo and Mark Stern 
 
8.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented Tax Credit Management Certification to Marianne 

Krager 
 
9.   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented new Agricultural Housing Division staff: Federico 

Chavez, Davis Senior Migrant Coordinator; Angel Damian, Dixon Migrant Center Coordinator and 
Maite Herrera, Part-time Office Assistant I 

 
10.  Executive Director Lisa Baker presented YCH contributions to Wildlife Habitat 
 
MOTION: Eisenstat. SECOND: Aguiar-Curry. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, Pimentel, 
Chaney, Johannessen.   
 







 

  
 Yolo County Housing  
 Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                                

Yolo County Housing         
    
 
  

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No.12-22 Item No.      11  , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of May 17, 2012. 
 
MOTION: Johannessen. SECOND:.Pimentel. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, Pimentel, Chaney, 
Johannessen. 
 
11.   Approved the minutes of April 19, 2012. 
 
12.   Approved and authorized the chair to sign Resolution No. 12-06 establishing the revised flat rent schedule 

and authorized the Executive Director to implement. 
 
13. Received and filed summary background information regarding New Hope Community Development 

Corporation Note Receivable. 
 



Yolo County Housing  April 19, 2012 

 Yolo County Housing  
 Yolo County, California 
 
 April 19, 2012 
 
 M I N U T E S 
 
Yolo County Housing met on the 19th day of April, 2012 in regular session in its 
Chambers in the Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court Street, Woodland, 
California at 2:00 p.m. Present were Commissioners Thomson, Aguiar-Curry, Eisenstat, 
Chaney, Pimentel and Johannessen. Chair Thomson presided. Others present were 
Alternate Commissioner Swanson, Lisa A. Baker, Executive Director and Sonia Cortés, 
Agency Counsel. 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 1.01 
Oath of Office 
 
West Sacramento City Representative Mark Johannessen was sworn in by Kristine 
Mann from the Elections Department. 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 2.01 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
This meeting of the Board of Commissioners commenced with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 2.02 
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Minute Order No. 12-16:  Approved the agenda for this meeting as submitted. 
 
MOTION: Pimentel. SECOND: Aguiar-Curry. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, 
Pimentel, Chaney, Johannessen.   
 
 
Agenda Item No. 2.03 
Public Comment 
 
The Chair invited individuals of the public to make statements on matters relating to Yolo 
County Housing business.  There was no public comment. 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 3.01 
Presentations 
                                            
3.01  Executive Director Lisa Baker presented Certificate of Appreciation from PGE to 

YCH for Support and Dedication to the  CARE Program. 
 
3.02   On behalf of the Yolo County Veteran’s Coalition, Billy Wagster presented the 



Yolo County Housing  April 19, 2012 

         Veteran Support Award to YCH.  
 
3.03   Resource Administrator Janis Holt presented the Housing  Choice Voucher 
          Specialist Certification to: Jamie Choi, Maria Peña, Veronica Mendoza and  
          Elizabeth Montoya. 
 
3.04  Executive Director Lisa Baker presented photos from 1st Annual Spring Fling – 
         YCH FUN Committee Initiative. 
 
3.05  Executive Director Lisa Baker and RHA presented  YCH Main Administrative   
         Building  Vacancy Sensor Installation Project. 
 
3.06  Clerk Julie Dachtler presented new format for future Board agendas and reports. 
 
 
Commissioner Chaney arrived at the dais at 2:06 p.m. 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 4.01 
Consent Agenda     
 
Minute Order No. 12-17:  Acted on the Consent Agenda as follows including the 
amendment to Agenda Item No. 4.02: 
 
4.01 Approved the minutes of March 15, 2012. 
 
4.02 Approved and authorized the Executive Director to sign Resolution No. 12-04  

amending the YCH Conflict of Interest Code. 
 
4.03 Received and filed correspondence from Breathe California of Sacramento-

Emigrant Trails congratulating Lisa Baker on being selected to receive a 2012 
Clean Air Award. 

 
4.04 Received and filed correspondence from the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development regarding use of federal funds in lobbying. 
 
MOTION: Pimentel. SECOND: Johannessen. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, 
Pimentel, Chaney, Johannessen.   
 
 
Agenda Item No. 5.01 
2010-11 Audit 
 
Minute Order No. 12-18: Approved and accepted the fiscal year 2010-2011 Audit for 
Yolo County Housing. 
 
MOTION: Eisenstat. SECOND: Pimentel. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, 
Pimentel, Chaney, Johannessen.   
 
 
 





 

  
 Yolo County Housing  
 Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                                

Yolo County Housing         
    
 
  

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No.12-22 Item No.      12  , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of May 17, 2012. 
 
MOTION: Johannessen. SECOND:.Pimentel. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, Pimentel, Chaney, 
Johannessen. 
 
11.   Approved the minutes of April 19, 2012. 
 
12.   Approved and authorized the chair to sign Resolution No. 12-06 establishing the revised flat rent schedule 

and authorized the Executive Director to implement. 
 
13. Received and filed summary background information regarding New Hope Community Development 

Corporation Note Receivable. 
 











 

  
 Yolo County Housing  
 Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                                

Yolo County Housing         
    
 
  

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No.12-22 Item No.      13  , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of May 17, 2012. 
 
MOTION: Johannessen. SECOND:.Pimentel. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, Pimentel, Chaney, 
Johannessen. 
 
11.   Approved the minutes of April 19, 2012. 
 
12.   Approved and authorized the chair to sign Resolution No. 12-06 establishing the revised flat rent schedule 

and authorized the Executive Director to implement. 
 
13. Received and filed summary background information regarding New Hope Community Development 

Corporation Note Receivable. 
 







 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  May 17, 2012    To: County Counsel                           
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item No. 14 
Portable Electronic Devices 
 
Minute Order No. 12-23: Took the following actions: 
 

A. Reviewed and discussed the findings of the research 
B. Compared alternatives and selected option no. 6  - having the option to either buy one’s own 

device that meets a standard specification or having YCH purchase a table that meets the 
standard specification 

C. $100 stipend to cover public use of the device  
D. Training 
E. Authorized the Executive Director to implement 

 
MOTION: Pimentel. SECOND: Aguiar-Curry. AYES: Aguiar-Curry, Thomson, Eisenstat, Pimentel, 
Chaney, Johannessen.   
 














